1. Description

3

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

Jean K. Hyams, Esq., State Bar No. 144425 LEVY VINICK BURRELL HYAMS LLP 180 Grand Avenue, Suite 1300 Oakland, CA 94612 Telephone: (510) 318-7703

Telephone: (510) 318-7703 Facsimile: (510) 318-7701 E-mail: jean@levyvinick.com

Celia McGuinness, State Bar No. 159420

LAW OFFICE OF PAUL REIN 200 Lakeside Drive, Suite 200

Oakland, CA 94612

Telephone: (510) 832-5001

Facsimile: 832-4787

E-mail: cmcguinness@reinlawoffice.com

Attorneys for Plaintiff

## CLERK OF THE SUPESION COUNTS

NOV 5 - 2014

## SUPERIOR COURT OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA

ALAMEDA COUNTY

MICHELLE LEWIS,

Plaintiff,

THE PERMANENTE MEDICAL GROUP, KAISER FOUNDATION HOSPITALS, KAISER FOUNDATION HEALTH PLAN, AND DOES 1 through 10, inclusive,

Defendants.

Case No R G 1 4 7 4 7 0 7 7

COMPLAINT FOR DAMAGES AND
DECLARATORY AND INJUNCTIVE RELIEF
FOR VIOLATIONS OF THE FAIR
EMPLOYMENT AND HOUSING ACT;
ADVERSE EMPLOYMENT ACTION IN
VIOLATION OF PUBLIC POLICY; AND THE
UNFAIR BUSINESS PRACTICES ACT

DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL

Plaintiff Michelle Lewis, for causes of action against Defendants, and each of them, alleges as follows:

## I. INTRODUCTION

1. This is an action for relief from Defendants' violations of Plaintiff's civil rights in contravention of the Fair Employment and Housing Act (FEHA), Cal. Gov't Code § 12900, et seq., and the Unfair Business Practices Act, Cal. Business & Prof. Code § 17200, et seq., as well as for Adverse Employment Action in Violation of Public Policy. Plaintiff also intends to add a claim for violation of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (ADA), 42 U.S.C. § 12101, et

COMPLAINT FOR DAMAGES AND DECLARATORY AND INJUNCTIVE RELIEF

Page 2

FEHA. Defendants are referred to herein, collectively, as "Kaiser Permanente" or "Kaiser." 1 2 The true names and capacities of Defendants DOES 1 through 10, inclusive, are 3 presently unknown to Plaintiff. Plaintiff will amend this complaint, setting forth the true names 4 and capacities of these fictitious Defendants, when they are ascertained. Plaintiff is informed 5 and believes and on that basis alleges that each of the fictitious Defendants has participated in the 6 acts alleged in this complaint to have been done by the named Defendants. Plaintiff is informed and believes and on that basis alleges that at all relevant 8 times, each of the Defendants, whether named or fictitious, was the agent or employee of each of the other Defendants with respect to some or all of the actions taken, and in doing the things 10 alleged to have been done in the complaint, acted within the scope of such agency or 11 employment, or ratified the acts of the other. IV. EXHAUSTION OF ADMINISTRATIVE REMEDIES 12 On or about May 13, 2014, Plaintiff Lewis filed a written complaint of . 13 8. 14 discrimination with the Equal Employment Opportunity Commission (EEOC). Subsequently, 15 the EEOC and the California Department of Fair Employment and Housing (DFEH) issued a 16 joint charge of discrimination signed by Plaintiff Lewis on June 25, 2014. The charge of discrimination alleged that Plaintiff Lewis was subject to disability-based discrimination. 17 18 Raintiff received a notice of her right to sue from the DFEH dated August 13, 19 2014. 20 Plaintiff has not yet received a "right to sue" notice from the EEOC and therefore 21 reserves her right to amend her complaint at a later date to allege claims under the ADA. 22 V. STATEMENT OF FACTS 23 11. Michelle Lewis went to work for Kaiser Permanente in 2001 as an emergency 24 room technician. In approximately 2008, she began working in her current role as unit assistant. 25 Over the years, she has worked in virtually every unit of Kaiser's San Rafael hospital. Her 26 Kaiser supervisors and managers have consistently provided positive ratings of Ms. Lewis' job 27 performance, often praising her work ethic and contributions. 28 12. As a unit assistant, Ms. Lewis' duties involve providing administrative support for

Labrador Retriever bred to work as a service dog. She was raised and trained from birth to

Page 4

COMPLAINT FOR DAMAGES AND DECLARATORY AND INJUNCTIVE RELIEF

COMPLAINT FOR DAMAGES AND DECLARATORY AND INJUNCTIVE RELIEF

Kaiser promptly.

she is a below-the-knee amputee.

- 29. In approximately the first week of March 2012, Ms. Lewis also met with Kaiser's human resources representative who asked Ms. Lewis to explain how she was legally disabled and to justify her need for a service dog. Ms. Lewis objected to the requirement that she provide a doctor's note and pointed out that her status as a person with a disability is obvious given that
- 30. During the meeting, Ms. Lewis also explained that her doctor was involved in overseeing her medical care and was not in a position to know how Angel assists her. She further advised that Canine Companions, which had already provided a letter supporting her need for Angel, was the better expert on how a service dog assists her as a person with disabilities. Despite this, Kaiser insisted on a note from Lewis' physician.
- 31. At Kaiser's insistence, Ms. Lewis also provided a letter from her Kaiser doctor documenting her status as an amputee and supporting her request to bring her service dog to work. Although this letter was provided in advance of Ms. Lewis' next scheduled day of work, Kaiser refused to permit her to return to work with Angel.
- On March 28, 2012, Kaiser sent Ms. Lewis' Kaiser doctor a letter demanding that the doctor detail "how the service animal will assist Michelle in performing her job duties." The letter did not ask for any information with regard to non-job-related reasons why Ms. Lewis needs to work with Angel, nor did it provide the doctor with information regarding Ms. Lewis' job duties.
- 33. On April 30, 2012, Ms. Lewis' Kaiser doctor wrote a second letter specifying some of the physical activities that cause her difficulty, specifically "bending over and opening heavy doors which may cause her to lose her balance." The doctor's note went on to state "ADA regulation allows her to bring her dog with her to her place of employment."
  - 34. On May 18, 2012, Ms. Lewis met with a Kaiser human resources representative

COMPLAINT FOR DAMAGES AND DECLARATORY AND INJUNCTIVE RELIEF

Plaintiff seeks a judicial declaration of the rights and duties of the respective

Page 8

COMPLAINT FOR DAMAGES AND DECLARATORY AND INJUNCTIVE RELIEF

28

46.

1	parties, including a declaration of Defendants' duty to comply with the law.		
2	VII. INJUNCTIVE RELIEF ALLEGATIONS		
3	47. Plaintiff incorporates by reference as if fully set forth herein the allegations		
4	contained in foregoing Paragraphs.		
5	48. If this Court does not grant the injunctive relief sought herein, Plaintiff will be		
6	irreparably harmed.		
7	49. No plain, adequate, or complete remedy at law is available to Plaintiff to redress		
8	the wrongs addressed herein.		
9	VIII. CAUSES OF ACTION		
10	FIRST CAUSE OF ACTION		
11	Disability-Based Discrimination in Violation of The Fair Employment and Housing Act		
12	Cal. Gov't Code § 12940(a), (i)		
13	50. Plaintiffs incorporate by reference as if fully set forth herein the allegations		
14	contained in foregoing Paragraphs.		
15	51. It is unlawful under the FEHA for an employer to discriminate because of the		
16	physical disability of any person. Cal. Gov't Code § 12940(a).		
17	52. Based on the facts alleged in this complaint, Defendants have violated the rights		
18	of Plaintiff Lewis to be free from disability-based discrimination, to be afforded equal access		
19	under the law, and/or to be provided reasonable accommodation.		
20	Defendants' unlawful actions and inactions were and are intentional and/or done		
21	with willful and conscious disregard to the right of Plaintiff Lewis to be free from		
22	discrimination based on disability, thus entitling Plaintiff to punitive damages.		
23	54. As a proximate result of the unlawful acts alleged herein, Plaintiff has suffered		
24	injuries, including emotional distress injuries.		
25	55. Plaintiff is entitled to compensatory damages, any lost benefits and compensation		
26	injunctive and declaratory relief, and attorneys' fees and costs.		
27 -	//.		
28	//		
	9		
	COMPLAINT FOR DAMAGES AND DECLARATORY AND INJUNCTIVE RELIEF Page		

## SECOND CAUSE OF ACTION

Adverse Employment Action in Violation of Public Policy

- 56. Plaintiff incorporates by reference as if fully set forth herein the allegations contained in foregoing Paragraphs.
  - 57. Defendants discriminated against Plaintiff Lewis on the basis of disability.
- 58. Based on the facts alleged in this complaint, Defendants' actions violate the fundamental public policies of the State of California to bar employers and other covered entities from discriminating against their employees because of disability. These public policies are embodied, among elsewhere, in California Government Code §§19230(a) and 12940 et seq., and the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, 42 U.S.C. § 12101, et seq.
- 59. Based on the facts alleged in this complaint, Defendants have violated the rights of Plaintiff Lewis to be free from disability-based discrimination, to be afforded equal access under the law, and/or to be provided reasonable accommodation.
- 60. Defendants' unlawful actions and inactions were and are intentional and/or done with willful and conscious disregard to the right of Plaintiff Lewis to be free from discrimination based on disability, thus entitling Plaintiff to punitive damages.
- 61. As a proximate result of the unlawful acts alleged herein, Plaintiff has suffered injuries, including emotional distress injuries.
- Plaintiff is entitled to compensatory damages, any lost benefits and compensation, injunctive and declaratory relief, and attorneys' fees and costs.

THIRD CAUSE OF ACTION

Unfair Business Practices in Violation of California's Unlawful Business Practices Act, Cal. Business & Prof. Code § 17200, et seq.
On Behalf of Plaintiff Lewis

- 63. Plaintiff incorporates by reference as if fully set forth herein the allegations contained in foregoing Paragraphs.
- 64. Unfair practices prohibited by California's Unfair Business Practices act include "any unlawful, unfair or fraudulent business act or practice." Cal. Bus. & Prof. Code § 17200.
  - 65. By maintaining the policies and/or practices described in this complaint,

Defendants ha	we committed unlawful and unfair business practices, including but not limited to	
the following:		
	(a) discriminating against Plaintiff Lewis on the basis of disability in	
violati	on of the ADA and the FEHA;	
	(b) interfering with the rights of Plaintiff Lewis in violation of the ADA; and	
	(c) adverse employment action in violation of California's public policy.	
66.	Violations of these statutes were and are unlawful. Violations of these statutes	
also violate established concepts of fairness, are immoral, unethical, oppressive, and		
unscrupulous.		
67.	As a proximate result of the unlawful and unfair business practices of	
Defendants, as	nd each of them, Plaintiff has suffered injury in fact and has lost money or	
property.		
68.	Plaintiff Lewis is entitled to restitution, declaratory relief, injunctive relief, and	
attorneys' fees and costs.		
	RELIEF REQUESTED	
WHEREFORE, Plaintiffs respectfully requests that this Court:		
1.	Grant all injunctive relief necessary to bring Defendants into compliance with the	
ADA, the FE	A, and the Unfair Business Practices Act;	
25	Grant declaratory relief;	
	Order Defendants to pay Plaintiff for any compensation denied or lost by reason	
of Defendants	'violations of the law, in an amount to be proven at trial;	
5.	Order Defendants to pay compensatory damages for emotional pain and suffering	
in an amount to be proven at trial;		
6.	Order Defendants to pay exemplary and punitive damages on the First through	
Fifth causes o	faction;	
7.	Order Defendants to pay restitution;	
8.	Order Defendants to pay Plaintiff's reasonable attorneys' fees, reasonable expert	
witness fees,	and other costs of the action;	
COMPLAINT F	OR DAMAGES AND DECLARATORY AND INJUNCTIVE RELIEF Page 1	
	the following:  violation  66.  also violate est unscrupulous.  67.  Defendants, an property.  68.  attorneys' feest where the state of Defendants of Defend	

. 17